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that it be ,..suft1cicntly an act of free 
will to purge the primary faint'' in 
light of the distinct policies and 
interests of the Foui-th Amend­
ment. 

The question whether a confes­
sion is voluntary under W 011g Sm1 
must lie answered on the facts ·c;{ 
each case. Though the Miranda 
w,arrnngs are an in1portaut factor in 
resolving the issue. other factor~ 
mu-;t he considered such as the 
temporal proximity of the arre<;t 
and the confession, the presence c,f 
intervening circurnstances, and the 
P~:p_o~e _arirl . flagrancy of the 
ot!1c1a! !l'llsconduct~ The hurden r,f 
sho\ving adrnissibflity of in-custody 
staten1ents of per~ons \Vho have 
been iHegaily afrested rests o:n the 
prosecutor. ·rhe ~tate faiied to 
sustain its burden in this case of 
showing that pettt1onerfs state 
ments were admissible under VVomz 

_5u_!}_, Brown V. Illinois, 43 U .s-.[~w: 
493'7 (US. Supreme Court, June 26. 
1975). 

COA-fMENT­
this case was 

The 
arrested 

In 

without 
probable cause and without a 
warrant. Statements ;;iven after 1.m 
illegal arre.,t are very, ditlicult to gel 
into evidence. On retrial, the 
cn·tical questioti is ~..,;;het her the 
starenumts given after the Miranda 
warning were a su[/icient act ojfree 
will to purge them from the taint of 
the illegal arrest. This case points 
out the need for law enforcement 
officers to take careful notes 
concerning circumstances sur· 
rounding the giving of a Miranda 
warning so that, if an arrest is later 
determined to be illegal, the o_fficer 
may use his notes to recall other 
details surrounding the admission 
which may prove the statements 
were an act of free will, and not 
tainted by the illegal arrest. 

ARREST, SEARCH AND 
SEIZURE: 

A § 2.6 Consent-Abandonment 

Federal drug agents were waiting 
for defendant's private airplane to 

agents suspected the arrival of 
contraband. ·vvhen the airplane 
arrived, !he defendant got out, a 
person drove up to the plarre~ 
talked to the left 11is car 
with the defendant and ~.valked to a 
nearby adaninistra.tion hufldh1g~ 
Defendant backed the car an to the 
plane and opened the trunk of the 
car. Federal ,:vho 1 .. vere 
not in unifortn and "·ho had no 
visible ;.veapons, approached the 
defrndant, identified 
and requested perrn1ssion to 
inspect the cargo \Vithout 
defendant that ·he could refuse~ 
defendant v.:ithour hesita.~ 
1ion, produced the keys and 
unlocked the 
himself,, '"fhc agents 
t1anu insich:~ 1~ht..: 

' cargo aoor 
found contra­

trial eourt 
concluded defendanfs cm~r,em iu 
'>earch the airplane wa~ not 

his moth)n 
to suppress. 

()n appeal, the circult court 
overruled the trlrd court 1

~ 

to suppress th:,~ seized. contraband 
saying their a1~2 of the fact~ Jed 
~herri to co~c'.l~~e ~he governn1cnt 
nad n1arnta1necJ its bu, .. den to prove 
dcfeudant's consent to inspect the 
cargo \-va:~ 1n1coerced under the 
totality of the circurnstances. When 
the agents rcque,;ted permission to 

• +·n . ' • searcn c, e a1rp1ane's cargo, no 
threats were rnade, no weapons 
were used and no uniforms were 
visible. The defendant immediatelv 
agreed, produced the keys and 
opened the cargo door. The court 
said the fact that defendant knew 
the search could prove incriminat­
ing did not negate the possibility 
that the consent was voluntary and 
not the product of coercion. The 
court also said a voluntary consent 
to search may be given by persons 
who have not been advised, and are 
presumably unaware, of their right 
to withhold their consent. U.S. v. 
Ciovacco, No. 74-1430 (1st Circuit 
Court of Appeals, June 10, 1975). 

COMMENT: The defendant's 
knowledge that he has a right to 

2 

considerctl courts in 
ing whether a consent lo search is 
w,lwi!ary under the totality of the 
circunLstances. (~j' course\ 
enforcement officer advises a 
person of his right to refuse the 
officer·s request to search, and the 
search was subsequently consented 
to, it would be very dijficult for a 
person to claim later that his 
consent was coerced. For a 
discussion of consent searches see 
the Law Enforcement Officer's 
Manual, Section Jll-B. 

CONFESSIONS/SELF­
INCRIMINATION: 

B § 1.3 Interrogation-Miranda 
DE}'ENDANT'S RIGHTS/ 
DEFENSES: 

D § 3.1 Alibi 
.EVlDENCE/WITNESSES: 

E ~ 1.4jaj Improper Refereice 
E § 2.1 Impeachment, 
Defendant 
E § 3.3 Cross-examination 

Defendant was convicted ()f 
robbery. FolJo\vJng his arrest he 
•.vas taken to the police ·,tation. 
After beine advised -nf his rieJit to 

~ ~ 

remain s~~ent \ he_ ma~e no _ response 
to an otucer"s tnqu1ry about the 
source of n1oney found on his 
person. [)cfendant testified at his 
trial and offered an alibi as a 
defense. In an cffori to impeach 
this alibL the prosecutor can<;ed 
defendant to admit on cross­
examination that he had not 
offered the exculpatory information 
concerning his alibi to the police at 
the time of his arrest. The trial 
court instructed the jury to 
disregard che exchange but did not 
declare a mistrial.. 

The U.S. Supreme Court held 
that the defendant's silence during 
police interrogation !acked signifi­
cant probative value and therefore 
should not have been allowed into 
evidence. The court said de­
fendani'silence was not so clearly 

f Continued on page 31 



inconsistent with his trial testimony 
as to warrant admission into 
evidence as a prior inconsistent 
statement because (1) defendant 
repeatedly as~;erted his innocence 
during the proceeding:,: (2) after 
defendant's arrest he was 
questioned in secretive, possibly 
intimidative surroundings with 
no one but police present; and 3) as 
a target of eyewitness identification, 
defendant was clearly a ''potential 
defendant." Under the circum­
stances of the case, the failure of 
defendant, who had just been giv~n 
the Miranda vvarnings, to respond 
during custodial in terrogat;on rn 
inquiry about the n,oney ,:ould as 
easily connote reliance on the right 
to ren1a.in silent as to ~upport an 
inference that hi-, trlai 
was a later fahricauo;;, Since t'hc 
jury was iH<J.:iy to 
weight to the 
silence than was 
dence of 
significant 
··rhe Court 
defenclanL 
U.S.L.W. 4806 
{~ourt, June 23, 1 

•.rial for 
Hale. 43 

SEARCH AND SE!ZCR.E: 
A § 2.3 Incident to _A,rrest 

CRJ.MES/OFFENSf'S; 
C § 7 .J Conspiracy 

EVIDENCE: 
E § 1.1 S'ufilciem:J 
E § 1.2 Hearsny 

Defendant was ,·z,r.Yiett-d of 
distribution of coe,1,1,e in • r. 
of 21 U.S.C §84i 
U.S,C. §2, and for ~G sn 
distribute in vio!ath)n 
§846. iUter arranging t,., 
cocaine frorri one Bernier; a 
agent paid Bernier $ l 400 for an 
ou.nce of coca h1e. Berriier 
stated that she go see 
friend and that 
soon with three more ounces of 
cocaine. P:.gen1s then cbscrved her 
enter a vehicle driven by 

Bernier the'h returned to the 
agent-purchaser, who asked her if 
she had picked up the rest of the 
cocaine. Bernier replied that she 
had and displayed a plastic bag 
containing three ounces of cocaine. 
After the agent departed, other 
agents arrested Bernier. Soon 
defendant approached on foot. 
Bernier then poin red at defendant 
and identified him as her source. 
Defendan1 was arrested, taken to 
the agent's headquarters, and 
or<lered to strip. An agent found in 
defendant's underwear $1400 in 
one hundred dollar bills. the serial 
nu11·ibers of matched the 

number~ on the b;lls which 
had been given to Bernier. After 
handing over the $14001 defendant 
co111.'.nued to H.e w~is then 

to bend over~ and he \.vas 
an agent, 

visu:il i~xu:rnination of his 

(Jn defendant argued 
that the $ i 4!X) should been 
su as the fruit of an illegal 
search~ lifter deterrnining that 

ex;,,ted sufficient facts and 
the arrest 
addressed 

the strip 

concluded that there \Va~ nothing 
d.nr·easonable in the circurnstances 
of t searcb 1 saying~ 

-arrest search of the pcr-
n a1irhorized by 

at1d may 
requiring a suspect to 

re!"HOYf' his clothes ancl a visual 
inspection of person ~ .. ]~l1at 
is a!! that happened here. If such 

v.rere not permissible 

condu.c!. a thorough search for 
wea,pz)ns :ind C(H1traband. 

"The facts ar!.: nor akin to the 
{)f hlood consid.ercd in 

,'\'chmerber v. California, 384 
tLS. 757 (i 966t ~fhc,re the (~ourt, 

;he enforced 

'se;irches intrusions 
·beyond the body's surface' to 
ca~et; \'Vhert:: authorities possess 

3 

'a clear indication that in fact ... 
evidence will be found,' , . , But 
the present facts do not require 
us to consider the extent to 
which compulsory medical pro­
cedures may be imposed upon 
persons lawfully arrested. There 
was no piercing or probing of 
Klein's skin, nor forced entry 
beyond the surface of his body. 
There was not even any touching 
of his body. Thus, his only claim 
is based upon the indignity of 
being forced to strip in front of 
the agents and to expose his 
private parts. But there is no 
evidence that the stripping was 
a pretext to humiliate or degrade 
him, and the modesty of one law­
fully arrested must give way to 
reasonable precautionary pro­
ced u rcs designed to detect 
hidden evidence, drugs, or ob­
jects which might be used against 
others or to cause self-inflicted 
harm ... " (Slip opinion at 6-7) 

(Footnme and citations omitted) 
U.S. v. Klein. No. 75-1105 (1st 
Circuit Court of Appeals, July 28, 
19'/5) 

Comments directed toward the 
improvement of this bulletin are 
welcome. Please contact the Law 
EnJorcemerit Edcuation Section, 
Criminal Division, Department of 
the Attorney General. State House, 
Augusta, Maine. 

l Continued on page 4] 



SEARCH AND SEIZURE: 
A§ 2.1 Probable Cause 
A§ 2.3 Incident to Arrest 
A§ 2.5 Persons Without a 
Warrant 

Defendant was found intoxi­
cated, arrested and subjected to a 
full warrantle~s search of his person 
before being locked up in jail. His 
wallet was removed and a search of 
the contents produced a ball of 
tinfoil, which, when opened, 
produced an orange pill containing 
d-lysergic acid diethylamide (LSD 
25). The pill was seized and was the 
basis for a charge of iliegal 
possession ofLSD-25 in violation of 
22 M.R.S.A. §2212-R Defendant 
contends that the pre-incarceration 
search of the contents of his wallet 
and the opening of the ball of 
tinfoil violated Article I, §5 of the 
Maine Constitution. 

The court held that warrantless 
pre-incarceration searches of per­
sons validly arrested are reasonable 
and such searches need not stop 
once an item has been removed 
from an arrestee's person. The item 
then may be examined to identify 
any objects contained therein. In 
this case, the wallet may have 
contained "a small gem or a plastic 
explosive." Protection of jailers and 
inmates, along with the proper 
securing and inventorying of 
prisoners' personal property are 
but a few justifications for such a 
search. Therefore, the search of the 
wallet and seizure of the pill did not 
violate Article I, §5 of the Maine 
Constitution. State v. Dubay, 338 
A.2d 797 (Supreme Judicial Court 
of Maine, May 1975). 

COMMENT: In the Febroary 1974 
ALERT, p. JO State v. Dubay, 313 
A.2d 908 [Supreme Judicial Court 
of Maine, 1974] was summarized 
and it was stated that the search 
described above did not violate the 
Fourth and Fourteenth Amend-

C RT DECISIONS 

ment rights guaranteed defendant 
Dubay under the federal constitu­
tion. The Dubay case summarized 
in this issue ol ALERT holds that 
no rights guaranteed defendant 
Dubay under Article I, §5 of the 
Maine Constitution were violated 
by the pre"incarceration search. 

lt is now settled as a matter <~l 
.federal and state constituiional law 
that ,Maine law enjvrct'nu:nt 
officers prior to a lawful incarcera· 
tion (~( a defendant ,nay, with 
neither a warrant nor probable 
cause, inspect anJ; contt,;iner ._ff>und 
on the de_fentiant 

1

S 11erson anli seize 
the contents o( the container, 

CRIMES/OFFENSES: 
C § 2.6 Arson 

CONFESSIONS/SELF­
INCRIMINATION: 

B § 1.1 Vohmt.ariness 
B § 2.2 Hearing 

There was a fire in the ceiling 
a latrine at the Maine State Prison. 
i\n iEvestjgatio:n revealed that a 
section of ceiling tile in the burnt 
latrine had been removed and. on 
the floor immediately above the 
latrine, two boards had been 
knocked out. Crumpled, tightly 
packed newspapers were packed in 
the hole created by the removed 
ceiling tile and the knocked our 
boards. No electrical wires were in 
the ceiling where the newspaper-; 
were packed. Prison officials 
subsequently questioned the de­
fendant who confessed to starting 
the fire. Defendant was found 
guilty of arson in the second degree, 
On appeal, defendant claims the 
corpus delicti of the crime was not 
established and therefore his 
confession was improperly ad­
mitted into evidence. 

4 

Before a confls?ssion n1ay be 
admitted into evidence, the corpus 
delicti (the body of the crime) must 
be proven. In order to establish the 
corpus delicti, the state must 
adduce 

"Credible evidence which, if 
believed, would create in the 
;nind of a reasonable man, not 
a mere surmise or suspicion, but 
.. , a really substantial belief. . , " 

that someone had committed the 
crln,e of arson. State v. Grant, 284 
A..2d 674, 676 (Supreme Judicial 
Cl)urt of Maine, 1971). The Law 
Court !'ejected defendant's claim, 
holding that the evidence estab,, 
Ji shed adequate proof of the corpus 
<lelic:t'. prior to the admission into 
evidence of defendant'-; confession, 

l)efcndant aJso clai1ned that his 
corrfession was irr1properly ad­
rnitted into evidence because the 
trial justice faHed to provide 

n:ith an adequate 
to pro~ve the 

W'as irrvoluntary. 1t\t the tria~ 
excused the a 

official begaP to talk abom 
circu,nstance,. surrounding 

confession. After the 
ptison official flnished testlf-_ying, 
:he trial justice ruled that the 
con t''• \'vas voluntary and 
,',rdered the Jury back to hear the 
prison official's testimony regard­
ing de:fendant's confession. De­
fendant's trial counsel objected, 
saying the defendant wished to take 
the stand and testify regarding a 
misunderstanding surrounding his 
conversation with prison officials 
which would render hb confe-;sion 
inadmissible because it was invol 
untary. The trial justice noted 
defCndant's request but 1~cfused 
to allow him to testify, The Law 
Court held this was reversible error 
since the defendant has a right to 
offer evidence bearing on the 

f Continued on page 5] 








